
QUESTION AND ANSWERS 

in frames of the tender 

 

Major repair of the educational building on 6 Osvity str., dormitory on 6a Osvity str., educational and office 
building on 9 Pyrogova str., educational buildings on 8/14 Turgenivska str. and sport complex on 3-9 

Turgenivska str.  

 

Q1 There is the following remark in the document titled “Form of Tender-Securing Declaration”: 
 
**: Person signing the Tender shall have the power of attorney given by the Tenderer attached 
to the Tender 
If the General  Director is the official authorized to sign all legal and financial documents on 
behalf of our company, whose authority is defined by the legal documents of our company, 
then is it necessary to draw up a notarized power of attorney to identify the authorized 
signatory? Or is it enough to provide the documents of entitlement among which are 1. 
Charter, 2. Minutes of the General Meeting and 3. Order on the assignment of the General 
Director? 

A1 It is enough to provide documents of entitlement, where the signatory power of an authorized 
person is confirmed (also see cl.16.2 Instruction to Tenderers (ITT). 

 

Q2 What documentary evidence is required to establish and confirm the structure of the JVCA? As 
far as we understand, can such a confirmation be a memorandum or a cooperation agreement 
in this project, signed between all members of the JVCA? 

A2 In accordance with Clause 8.1 (h) of ITT, the Tenderer, which is JVCA, must submit within his 
tender the agreement on JVCA establishhment, which at  least specifies the parts of the 
Employer's Requirements to be fulfilled by each of the JVCA partners. 

 

Q3 What should be the structure of this Agreement among JVCA members and should it be 
notarized? 

A3 The structure of the agreement is not defined by the tender documentation, but it is 
mandatory to define the role of each partner - the leading partner of the JVCA and a partner of 
the JVCA, as well as his responsibility in the future contract, as required by clause 4.1 of ITT 
(a) All partners should be jointly and severally liable: and 
(b) the JVCA shall appoint a Representative who shall have the power to conduct cases on 
behalf of any and all JVCA partners during the tendering process as well as during the 
performance of the contract, if the contract is assigned to that JVCA  

 

Q4 In case if a JVCA partner is not currently a resident of Ukraine, should he have a permanent 
representation office in Ukraine? 

A4 If JVCA member is a a non-resident and JVCA leading partner (representative), he must comply 
with the requirements of clause 8.1 (i) (i) of the ITT, according to which he  must provide 
documentary evidence that he has a permanent representation office registered in accordance 
with the law of Ukraine, or in case of absence of such a representative office, submit an official 
letter confirming that the tenderer will register such a representative office, in case of 
obtaining the contract before signing it. If this JVCA partner is not a leader (representative), 
then the above requirement does not apply to him. 



 

Q5 In the case of the JVCA, is each partner required to submit a signed " Tender-Securing 
Declaration ", or is the signed form from the leading partner enough? In the case of contract 
awarding, how does the JVCA provide a contract performance security (10% bank guarantee)? 
Kindly clarify the mechanism for introducing a bank guarantee in this case. 

A5 In accordance with Clause 16.3 of the ITT, the Tender, as well as other documents in the Tender 
that require signature, submitted by the JVCA, must: 
(a) be signed in the way to legally bind all partners; and 
(b) contain the authorization of the Representative in the form of a notarizied power of 
attorney signed by persons authorized to sign on behalf of the JVCA. 
The JVCA bank guarantee shall be submitted by the bank in the form given in the tender 
document, in which the JVCA is indicated by the contractor (means the leading partner and 
other partners of the JVCA. The bank guarantee of the contract performance is submitted only 
by the successful tenderer. 

 

Q6 If one of the JVCA members is not a resident of Ukraine and its legal and registration 
documents are drawn up in a language different than English. In this case, should the JVCA 
member provide translation of these documents into English and / or Ukrainian? If so, should 
this be an apostille or a simple translation will be enough? 

A6 According to clause 7.1 of the ITT, tender proposals from foreign companies must be prepared 
in English with translation into Ukrainian. Tenders from Ukrainian companies must be prepared 
in Ukrainian. Documents of entitlement must be translated and notarized. 
 

 

Q7 Please provide information regarding: 
A) possible participation of a company with a CC2 license to perform works on the manufacture 
and installation of metal-plastic windows. 
B) the need to participate only with a partner who has a CC3 license (JVCA option) 

A7 According to Section 3.3 of Section IV. Employer`s Requirements it is required that the 
participant must have a valid construction license with a CC3 class of responsibility, as well as 
an Annex to the license, which lists all types of work related to the implementation of the 
project. 
In addition to the installation of windows, the Project also envisages many other construction 
and engineering works (façade heat insulation, roof heat insulation, replacement of the heating 
system, modernization of the ventilation and lighting system, etc.). The participant must prove 
experience and ability to perform all the foreseen works. 
In this way: 
A) a company, as a separate participant, with a CC2 license to perform works on the 
manufacturing and installation of metal-plastic windows may not be qualified due to non-
compliance with the basic qualification requirements. 
B) The participation of a company with a CC2 license to perform works on the manufacturing 
and installation of metal-plastic windows is possible within the JVCA with a partner who has a 
CC3 license and will meet all other qualification requirements specified in the tender 
documentation. 

 

Q8 According to the terms of the tender documentation, the tenderer must confirm his  
experience by providing 5 contracts performed during the last 5 years with a total value of at 
least: 



- for Lot 1: EURO 1 500 000; 
- for Lot 2: EURO 1 500 000: 
- for Lot 3: EURO 2 500 000,  

As far as we understand, if a tenderer takes part in more than one tender, does he have to 
submit 5 relevant contracts for each of the lots separately, or should he submit 5 contracts with 
corresponding cumulative value in accordance with the above mentioned evaluation criteria? 
 
For example, if a tenderer intends to apply for Lot 1 and Lot 2, should then the total value of 
the 5 contracts submitted for consideration be more than EUR 3 000 000 million? Or should a 
tenderer submit 10 contracts for which the total value exceeds mentioned above value? 

A8 According to section B of the “Evaluation and Qualification Criteria”, subparagraph (d) of the 
tender document, where the tenderer applies for more than one lot, the total value of all 5 
contracts shall be not less than the total value set for the respective lots above. Therefore, the 
tenderer who wishes to apply for lots 1 and 2 must submit 5 contracts performed during the 
last 5 years with a total value exceeding EUR 3 000 000 
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